n a

Fairfax County Community Action Advisory Board

Memorandum

To: CAAB Members

From: Michelle Jefferson, Chair

Date: May 1, 2024

Subject: CAAB Meeting – May 7, 2024

The next CAAB meeting will be held on Tuesday May 7, 2024, at 7:30pm at the Fairfax County Government Center in meeting rooms 9&10.

Consolidated Community Funding Pool (CCFP) FY 25-26 Program Selection

A presentation will be provided by the Department of Procurement and Material Management (DPMM). Selections will be made as to which contractors will receive CSBG Funding. The list of contractors to choose from will be made available on Tuesday, May 7th after the Board of Supervisors has adopted the FY 25 county budget. The information will be forwarded to CAAB members as soon as it is received by staff.

Membership and Election Committee Report

An update on the actions taken to fill vacancies will be given. The CAAB will vote on accepting the edited By-Laws.

CAAB Budget Testimony

Michelle Jefferson, Heather Thomas, and Maria Isabel Leiva Alfonso will provide an update on their testimony at the FY25 budget hearing.

CAAB Member Sharing

As a reminder, Member Sharing was established for CAAB members to report the "word on the street" - issues that affect the low-income community about which the CAAB should be aware; ten (10) minutes are allocated to this agenda item.

CCFAC Meeting Report

Morgan Jameson, CAAB representative on the Consolidated Community Funding Advisory Committee, will provide a brief update.

Attachments:

May 2024 Meeting Agenda April 2024 Meeting Minutes CAAB By-Laws Draft

The Community Action Advisory Board's mission is to make a positive difference in the lives of people experiencing poverty by influencing decision makers, providing funding, and taking actions to address the root causes and conditions of poverty and injustice.



Fairfax County Community Action Advisory Board

Tuesday, May 7, 2024 7:30 PM Fairfax County Government Center- Meeting Rooms 9&10

AGENDA

TIME	ISSUE	INFO/ACTION	PRESENTER
7:30 PM	Call to Order		Michelle Jefferson, Chair
	Approval of Minutes	Action	Michelle Jefferson, Chair
	DPMM Presentation	Info	Andrew Janos, Michelle Brizzi, DPMM
	FY 25-26 CSBG Program Selection	Action	CAAB Members
	Membership and Elections: Vote to accept edited By-Laws	Action	Shari Zamarra, Membership & Elections Committee Chair
	Update on FY 25 Budget Testimony	Info	Michelle Jefferson, Heather Thomas, Maria Leiva Alfonso
	CCFAC Update	Info	Morgan Jameson, Secretary
	CAAB Member Sharing	Info	CAAB Members
9:30 PM	Adjourn		

Next CAAB Meeting Tuesday, June 4, 2024 7:30 p.m. Fairfax County Government Center



Fairfax County Community Action Advisory Board

Fairfax County Community Action Advisory Board (CAAB) Meeting Minutes – Tuesday, April 2, 2024, 7:30pm Fairfax County Government Center Rooms 9&10

<u>Members in Attendance</u>: Michele "Cookie" Hymer Blitz, Maria Isabel Leiva Alfonso, April Hall, Caroline Hockenberry, Morgan Jameson, Michelle Jefferson, Michael Mahrer, Marcia McDevitt, Michele Menapace, Phil Rosenthal, Felicia Webster, Shari Zamarra, Yosias Zelalem

Members Participating Remotely Due to Medical Reasons: Sandra Barksdale, Reston; Hunter Doe, Lorton; Hawa Hassan, Fairfax; Ken McMillon, Falls Church; Heather Thomas, Centreville; Elizabeth 'Liz' Benson, Falls Church, Benjamin Zuhl, Fairfax County, Hunter Doe, Lorton

<u>Absent</u>: Alex Rodriguez, Matthew Bell, Mary Ann Floto, Hari Kurup, Nermin Abdelwahab, Kevin Hickerson

Meeting called to order at 7:30 pm by Michelle Jefferson, Chair. Chair Jefferson reviewed and addressed remote participation meeting policy.

Minutes - March 2024

The motion to approve the meeting minutes was made by Phil Rosenthal, seconded by April Hall and passed without objections.

Chair Jefferson introduced new CAAB Members present; Yosias "Yosi" Zelalem and Felicia Webster.

Program Presentation- Second Story for Young Mothers

Beckha Drake provided a presentation on the Second Story for Young Mothers Program. During the presentation there was an expressed need for toilet paper, paper towels, and diapers for the program. A copy of the presentation is included with a copy of these minutes and meeting materials.

Membership and Election Committee Report

Membership and Elections report was given by Shari Zamara. Michele Menapace moved to elect the Membership and Elections committee members, seconded by Michele "Cookie" Hymer Blitz, carried. The members are Shari Zamarra, Heather Thomas, Kevin Hickerson, Ken McMillon, and Ben Zuhl.

CAAB By-Laws

Updated bylaws were presented and discussed. Shari Zamarra discussed the edits of the bylaws, including the requirement for signatures from the low-income representative population. The Membership and Elections committee discussed lowering the number of required signatures from 25 to 10 to join the CAAB.

Commented [PA1]: This is still missing the reason why folks are participating remotely and the vote to accept that the reasons are compliant with the remote participation policy.

Michele Menapace gave clarification on how representatives from each sector join the board, whether they are appointed by the Board of Supervisors, appointed by a non-profit organization, or a representative from the low-income community.

Michele "Cookie" Hymer Blitz mentioned that it is important not to create barriers for community members to join the board. Maria Isabel Leiva Alfonso stated that it was not difficult to receive 25 signatures and found that the number is too low.

Michelle Jefferson stated that it is important to have a connection to the community. Michele "Cookie" Hymer Blitz mentioned that being from specific ZIP codes should also be removed from the bylaws since there are pockets of those in poverty throughout the county.

Michele Menapace requested to add the language "agency designee" where appropriate in the CAAB By-Laws, including the custodian of meeting minutes. The changes that need to be voted on are for the Secretary role, the signature petition, to remove the ZIP codes for poverty references, and to add specificity on closed meeting sessions.

April 16th Budget Hearing

Michelle Jefferson shared during the upcoming April 16th budget hearing, the CAAB will be represented by her, Heather Thomas, and Maria Isabel Leiva Alfonso. The focus will be on affordable housing and childcare.

CAAB Member Sharing

Morgan Jameson informed CAAB members the next CCFAC meeting will be on April 9th.

Michele Menapace shared CCFAC will have the selection advisory committee members presenting on June 11th at 7:30pm. The Human Services Council hosted a summit with BACs and other groups. Michele provided a certificate of recognition and medal from the Fairfax County Health Department.

Michele "Cookie" Hymer Blitz suggested the use of libraries for delivery of surplus food. FCRHA allocated funds for 300 new permanent supportive housing for people with mental illness as well as supportive staff members.

Phil Rosenthal shared that the libraries will be requesting funds to replenish outdated portions of the library system. He mentioned this to be proactive and meet with decision makers and Supervisors and Staff.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:32 pm.

COMMUNITY ACTION ADVISORY BOARD (CAAB) OF THE FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF NEIGHBORHOOD AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I – NAME

The name of the organization is the Fairfax County Community Action Advisory Board, hereinafter referred to as the CAAB.

ARTICLE II – FUNCTIONS, POWERS, AND DUTIES

Section A

The functions of the CAAB shall include the following: to act as an advisory body to the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors; to recommend to the Board of Supervisors policies to assist the low-income population of the County; to review programs and projects that concern the low-income population in order to advise the Board of Supervisors and the Director of the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services; and to review and make recommendations regarding existing programs, program changes, and/or reallocation of resources based on staff and CAAB monitoring and evaluation.

Section B

In order to carry out its functions, the CAAB is authorized to and shall:

- 1. Oversee the disposition of Community Service Block Grant (CSBG) funds, to include:
 - a. researching and assessing community needs;
 - b. facilitating public hearings for low-income families and individuals;
 - c. allocating funds; and
 - d. approving programs and contracts with community organizations serving low-income persons.
- 2. Serve as an advocate for the low-income population and, in this capacity, provide leadership to enable the low-income population within the County to achieve equality of opportunity and social justice.
- 3. Develop goals, objectives, and priorities, which shall guide the Board of Supervisors in making policies for direction of anti-poverty programs in the County.
- 4. Ensure that the low-income population provides input to, and benefits from, antipoverty programs.

- Make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors and the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services concerning the increase, coordination, improvement, or reallocation of resources that affect the low-income population.
- Assist with public hearings, focus group meetings, or other means of gathering information as deemed necessary to determine the changing needs of the lowincome population or as the Board of Supervisors may request.
- 7. Review reports prepared by the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services and make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors that concern the work activities, expenditures, and evaluations of the effectiveness of the programs that affect the low-income population.
- 8. Recommend to the Board of Supervisors those applications or other issues to be submitted to federal and state agencies for financial assistance or resolution.
- Establish bylaws or procedures governing the CAAB's activities that are consistent
 with the directives of the Board of Supervisors, and/or any federal or state statutes,
 rules, or regulations governing community action agencies.
- 10. Oversee the process for selection of representatives of the low-income population to the CAAB.

Section C

The CAAB shall observe the following relationships:

- The Department of Neighborhood and Community Services shall implement the directions of the Board of Supervisors.
- 2. The control and management of the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services is vested in the Deputy County Executive for Human Services.
- Staff support to the CAAB shall be provided as designated by the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

Section A

The CAAB is a tri-part Board and shall consist of thirty (30) members. Ten (10) members shall represent the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors (Appointed Members), ten (10) members shall represent the low-income population (Representatives), and ten (10) members shall represent private sector organizations (Private Sector).

Appointed Sector
 Each of the ten (10) members of the Board of Supervisors may serve as a member of the CAAB or may appoint their own representative to serve on the CAAB.

2. Representative Sector

- a. Ten (10) members shall represent the low-income population in Fairfax County. One of these Representatives shall be appointed by Fairfax County Head Start program. The remaining nine (9) Representatives shall either be low-income residents as defined in Attachment B who are selected by a democratic process as set forth in Attachment A of these By-Laws or representatives of organizations that provide assistance or services to low-income residents, who shall be appointed by the same procedure used for Private Sector Organization members outlined in Section III.A.3 below.
- b. In filling these member seats, the CAAB shall give preference to low-income residents. A minimum of (5) of these nine (9) democratically selected Representative seats shall be filled by representatives who live in households with incomes below 250% of poverty as defined in Appendix B.
- c. Representatives shall reside in Fairfax County, unless they are representatives of organizations that provide assistance or services to low-income residents in Fairfax County. Organizations shall be encouraged to appoint representatives who reside in Fairfax County.
- d. A seat shall be declared vacant for a democratically selected Representative who moves out of Fairfax County.

3. Private Sector

- a. One representative from each of ten (10) private sector organizations shall be selected by their respective organization to serve on the CAAB. These organizations shall represent business, civic, labor, minority, religious, service, welfare, or other private groups and interests.
- The Board of Supervisors shall determine the represented private sector organizations.
- c. The Board of Supervisors shall confirm the representatives.
- d. Organizations shall be encouraged to appoint representatives who reside in Fairfax County.

4. Petition

Any group, organization, or community that is representative of the low-income population and believes it is inadequately represented on the CAAB, may petition the CAAB for representation. The petition shall state the grounds therefore and include at least twenty-five (25) signatures of individuals who belong to the group or community. Following receipt of the petition, the CAAB shall hold a public hearing to determine whether the petitioner is, in fact, inadequately represented. If so determined, the CAAB shall recommend to the Board of Supervisors that consideration be given for having a representative of the petitioner on the CAAB.

5. Restriction

No officer, Director, board member, or staff member of an agency or organization under contract to the County for services funded by CSBG monies shall be a member of the CAAB.

Section B

- 1. Terms of Membership
 - a. CAAB member terms shall be three (3) years. There shall be no restrictions on the number of terms served.
 - b. Terms shall begin and end on February 1st.
 - c. Vacancies in seats appointed by the Board of Supervisors or private sector organizations shall be filled by the appropriate body for the remainder of the vacated term. The appointing body shall be requested to appoint a new member within thirty (30) days.
 - d. A Representative vacancy shall be filled by the procedure set forth in Attachment $\mbox{\ \ A}$
 - e. CAAB member responsibilities include attendance at regularly scheduled and special meetings. CAAB members are encouraged to serve on at least one CAAB Committee, Ad Hoc Committee, or as the CAAB representative on another Fairfax County Board, Authority, Commission or Committee.

2. Removal from Membership

- a. Absence by a CAAB member without a valid reason from three (3) consecutive, regularly scheduled CAAB meetings within a term-year shall be considered as cause for termination of membership. The Membership and Elections Committee shall review and recommend appropriate action regarding the member's continued service on the CAAB.
- b. Any of the following circumstances shall result in removal from the CAAB:
 - i. Termination of residence within Fairfax County, where applicable;
 - ii. Termination of membership in the organization from which selected or confirmed;
 - iii. Conflict of interest because of employment or status at an agency or an organization under contract to Fairfax County for services funded by CSBG monies: or
 - iv. Violation of the Conduct Policy outlined in Article III, Section.B.5 of these Bylaws.
- 3. Appeal of Removal from Membership

A CAAB member shall have fifteen (15) days after receipt of written notification of removal from membership to appeal such action to the CAAB.

4. Alternates

When it is consistent with Federal and State guidelines, provisions, and regulations, the CAAB may allow alternates to substitute for its members. The alternate shall have the same powers and authority as the principal representative when serving in their place.

a. Each member of the Board of Supervisors may appoint a representative to serve in their place or in their absence. These representatives cannot appoint alternates to substitute for themselves.

- Alternates for Representatives shall be selected in the same manner as the Representatives themselves.
- c. The private sector organizations represented on the CAAB may each appoint one alternate in the same manner as they appoint their own representative.
- d. When permitted, a CAAB member shall have only one alternate.
- e. Each alternate shall substitute for only one CAAB member.
- No alternate of a selected or confirmed representative shall serve as an officer of the CAAB.

5. Conduct Policy

- a. CAAB members should:
 - Use best efforts to participate in activities of the CAAB and to behave in a professional manner during meetings;
 - ii. Not abuse their CAAB membership by improperly using said membership or office or County staff, services, equipment, materials, resources, or property for their personal or third-party gain or pleasure, and shall not represent to third parties that their authority as a CAAB member extends any further than it actually extends;
 - Not engage in or facilitate any discriminatory or harassing behavior directed toward County staff, members, officers, meeting attendees, contractors, or others in the context of activities relating to the CAAB;
 - iv. Not solicit or accept gifts, gratuities, free trips, honoraria, personal property, or any other item of value from any person or entity as a direct or indirect inducement to provide special treatment to such donor with respect to matters pertaining to CAAB without fully disclosing such items to the CAAB; and
 - v. Not disclose confidential information, including from closed meeting sessions and communications.

Vote to accept the above highlighted language? Yes No Suggestions?

b. The Membership and Elections Committee will review violations of the Conduct Policy and will make recommendations regarding the member's continued service on the CAAB, including removal from membership.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

Section A

The officers of the CAAB shall be a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson and a Secretary, elected by the CAAB in the manner prescribed herein. An officer shall hold no more than one officer position. Officers of the CAAB shall reflect, insofar as possible, the composition of the full CAAB.

Section B Duties of Officers

- 1. The Chairperson shall be the principal officer of the CAAB, shall preside at all meetings of the CAAB, and shall be entitled to vote on all issues. The Chairperson is authorized to sign, with the Secretary, when necessary, any instruments that the CAAB has authorized to be executed, except where required by law to be otherwise signed or executed. The Chairperson shall perform all duties incident to the office and such others as may be prescribed by the CAAB. The Chairperson shall represent the CAAB at appropriate functions and meetings. If necessary, the Chairperson may select another CAAB member to take their place at such functions.
- The Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in their absence or inability to act. In such instance, the Vice-Chairperson shall have all the powers of, and be subject to any restrictions placed upon, the office of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Chairperson or the CAAB.
- 3. The Secretary shall record and keep minutes of all CAAB meetings recorded as required under the VFOIA, accurately reflecting all actions taken; copies of such minutes shall be filed with the supporting Fairfax County agency CAAB staff. Minutes shall include: (1) the date, time, and location of each meeting; (2) the members present and absent; (3) a summary of the discussion on matters proposed, deliberated, or decided; and (4) a record of any votes taken. Such minutes are public records and subject to inspection and copying by citizens of the Commonwealth or by members of the news media. The Secretary shall perform all other duties generally incident to the office and such other duties as may be assigned by the Chairperson or the CAAB. When the Secretary is absent or temporarily unable to serve, the CAAB shall appoint a CAAB member or County agency designee who is present to serve in that capacity for that occasion.

Vote to accept the above highlighted language?	Yes	No
Suggestions?		

Section C

- 1. Term of Office
 - The term of office of each position shall be one year. An officer can be nominated and elected for subsequent terms.
- 2. Election of Officers
 - The officers of the CAAB shall be elected by the CAAB in February and shall assume office immediately.

3. Vacancies

Vacancies shall be filled by a special election at any meeting of the CAAB. The Membership and Elections Committee shall present nominations at least two (2) weeks before such an election.

4. Removal from Office

Removal from office shall be for non-performance of duties or for reasons as set forth in Article III, Section B2. Removal shall be accomplished by a majority vote of members in attendance at a regularly scheduled or special CAAB meeting.

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS

Section A

- Regularly scheduled meetings of the CAAB shall be held each month, except for November, at a day and time to be fixed by the CAAB.
- The CAAB may, by resolution, elect to hold a CAAB meeting on any other day of the week and at such time as may be most convenient for a majority of CAAB members.
- 3. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson and/or at the request of at least five (5) members of the CAAB.
- 4. There shall be notice of all CAAB meetings at least five (5) days in advance.
- 5. All CAAB meetings are to be announced in accordance with state open meetings regulations, and open to the public.
- 6. A quorum shall be one-third (1/3) of the occupied CAAB positions.

ARTICLE VI - COMMITTEES

Section A

- 1. There shall be two (2) Standing Committees, which shall be constituted insofar as possible in conformity with the composition of the full CAAB.
- 2. The Standing Committees are the Executive Committee and Membership and Elections Committee.
- 3. The role of the committees, in general, is to assist the CAAB in achieving its mission. Committee chairpersons should strive for adequate membership, balance, and attendance at meetings; however, the general mission of the CAAB should take precedence over procedural matters. Therefore, the lack of a tri-part committee shall not prevent a partial committee from making recommendations when accompanied by an explanation of the situation and the composition of the partial committee.

- 4. Vacancies on committees shall be filled during the year and shall be the responsibility of the Chairperson of the CAAB in consultation with the Membership and Elections Chairperson.
- 5. Removal from committees shall be for non-performance of responsibilities or for reasons set forth in Article III, Section B2.
- 6. All committee reports shall be shared with all CAAB members.

Section B Executive Committee

- The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the CAAB, the immediate
 past CAAB Chairperson and the CAAB Representative to the Consolidated
 Community Funding Advisory Committee (CCFAC).
- 2. The Executive Committee shall have the power to act on behalf of the CAAB at such times as the CAAB is not in session, such actions being subject to certification by the CAAB at its next regularly scheduled meeting.
- 3. The Executive Committee serves generally as an advisory group to the Chairperson and the CAAB and as a forum to review new proposals from individual CAAB members. It primarily develops planning and policy agendas for timely CAAB consideration based on interaction with the Board of Supervisors, the Deputy County Executive for Human Services, Department of Family Services, Department of Neighborhood and Community Services and other boards and committees. The Executive Committee shall also perform such other functions as may be assigned to it by the CAAB.
- 4. The quorum for the Executive Committee shall be fifty percent (50%) of the occupied Committee positions.
- 5. Terms of office for the Executive Committee shall begin and end upon the February meeting date.

Section C Membership and Elections Committee

- 1. The Membership and Elections Committee shall consist of six (6) members, two from each category of membership.
- 2. The Committee shall be elected by the CAAB at the February meeting.
- 3. The Chairperson of the CAAB shall appoint the Chairperson of the Membership and Elections Committee from within the newly elected Committee.
- 4. A member of the Membership and Elections Committee wishing to be a candidate for any office shall recuse themselves from the actual election process.
- 5. The Membership and Elections Committee shall meet at such time as may be most convenient for a majority of the Committee members.

6. All Committee reports shall be shared with all CAAB members.

7. Duties shall include:

a. Membership

- 1. Solicit candidates to fill all vacancies on the CAAB.
- 2. In collaboration with staff, arrange for orientation sessions for new members at least annually.
- Assign active CAAB election and committee members as mentors to new members as needed.
- 4. Monitor CAAB attendance records and recommend appropriate action to the CAAB if members do not comply with attendance policy.

b. Elections

- 1. Announce upcoming elections for officers, and the Membership and Elections Committee, to the CAAB at least sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting and encourage members to volunteer.
- Present a slate of candidates for each officer position, and each Membership and Elections Committee position, at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting.
- 3. Present the names of candidates to fill vacant officer and committee positions as they might occur during the year.
- Apprise all nominees of the responsibilities of the office for which nominated.
- 5. Announce to the CAAB and to all candidates at least one (1) month prior to the elections, the rules and procedures governing the forthcoming elections.
- 6. The outgoing Chairperson of the Committee shall conduct the elections at the February CAAB meeting. If unable to do so, the Membership and Elections Committee shall select another member to do so.
- 7. Coordinate and oversee the democratic process for selection of low-income representatives on the CAAB, pursuant to Attachment A of these Bylaws.
- c. Periodically review and make recommendations to update the CAAB bylaws.

Section D Ad Hoc Committees

Ad Hoc Committees may be established from time to time by the CAAB with a specific charge, serving until such project is completed and a report is submitted.

- 1. Membership on Ad Hoc Committees shall be on a volunteer basis or lacking volunteers, may be appointed by the Executive Committee, but shall be constituted insofar as possible in conformity with the tri-part composition of the full CAAB.
- The establishment of an Ad Hoc Committee shall not result in amendment to these Bylaws.
- 3. The CAAB Chairperson shall appoint the Chairperson of an Ad Hoc Committee.

Section E Responsibilities of a Committee Chairperson

A committee chairperson shall:

- 1. Assure all committee members understand the purpose of the committee.
- 2. Articulate the goals of the committee.
- 3. Hold the committee to the timelines set.
- 4. Keep the committee on track with its work.
- 5. Coordinate committee requests for staff assistance.
- 6. Present regular reports to the CAAB in the format requested (verbal or written).
- 7. Schedule any extra meetings, coordinate physical arrangements, staff assistance and notification of committee members.
- 8. Assure participation of all committee members.

ARTICLE VII – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Parliamentary questions shall be determined in accordance with *Robert's Rules of Order*, most recent edition.

ARTICLE VIII – GUIDELINES, PROVISIONS AND REGULATIONS

The CAAB shall operate within the following guidelines, provisions, and regulations:

Federal Law – P.L. 105-285

State Law – Virginia Code Sec. 2.2-5400 through 2.2-5408

Urban County Executive Form of Government, Chapter 8, Article 1, General Provisions – Virginia Code 15.2-803

Virginia Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) - Virginia Code Section 2.2-3700 through Section 2.2-3715

ARTICLE IX – AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended at any regularly scheduled or special meetings of the CAAB by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of members present and voting, provided that notice of such amendment has been given to all members at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which the proposed amendment is to be considered for adoption.

Attachment A

Procedures for Selection of Representatives of the Low-Income Population

Each candidate for a seat as a Representative of the low-income population shall demonstrate sufficient democratic support for their candidacy by submission of a petition signed by at least ten (10) individuals. Any Representative wishing to serve an additional term must demonstrate continued support for their candidacy on the board by submitting a petition signed by at least five (5) individuals. In both instances, the CAAB shall furnish candidates with the required petition form.

Vote to accept the above highlighted language? Yes No Suggestions?

In order to be a qualified signature, each individual signer must certify on the petition that they are at least eighteen (18) years of age, reside in Fairfax County, and are signing voluntarily without any coercion or intimidation. Following receipt of the completed petition from the candidate, the CAAB membership and elections committee shall consider the candidate's petition and any other relevant information to assess whether the candidate is qualified. The membership and elections committee will bring forward the prospective candidate to the CAAB. A vote shall be taken by the CAAB to confirm the candidate selection. County staff will submit the recommended candidate to the Board of Supervisors on behalf of the CAAB to be confirmed by the Board.

In the event that two or more candidates seek one seat as a Representative of the low-income population, the candidate with the greatest number of qualified signatures on their petition shall be given priority by the CAAB for that seat.

Attachment B

Definition of Representatives of the Low-Income Population

To serve as a democratically selected low-income representative for the CAAB, a person shall meet one or both of the following criteria:

- They attest to living in a household that earns below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level, regardless of where they live in the county.
- They reside in one of the ZIP Codes identified as being in the lowest third with respect to median household income as reported by the Census Bureau's American Community Survey.

Would it make sense to reference the vulnerability index with high vulnerability scores?

Vote to remove the above highlighted language? Yes No Suggestions?

1. Income self-disclosure

The process for becoming a member of the CAAB involves gathering 10 signatures on a petition form (designed by County staff) along with the submission of a resume and/or a letter that includes a statement of intention with relevant background experience as it relates to the CAAB. Signing the statement on the petition form attesting whether an individual resides in a household with an income below 250% of poverty is all that is required to qualify for this category. There shall be no additional requirement to verify income. The current poverty rates will apply as set forth by the federal government.

This will follow the above vote on signature requirements in Attachment A.

2. Residing in a low-income area

As an option for membership, an individual may serve as a democratically selected low-income representative if they reside in a "low-income area." The designation of "low-income areas" shall be based on ZIP Codes that are in the bottom third of median household incomes based on the most recent American Community Survey median household income data.

Vote to remove the above highlighted language? Yes No

Commented [PA2]: Would it make sense to reference the vulnerability index with high vulnerability scores?

Suggestions?	

3. Stipends

Only representatives who self-identify as low-income (as defined in Section 1 above) are eligible to receive a stipend, regardless of where they reside in the county.

4. Changes in Status

Although the federal poverty level and median household income data is adjusted annually, CAAB members will not be required to update their status annually. CAAB members will complete a revised petition form when their term expires.